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San Francisco
- Water

Services of the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission

SAN FRANCISCO PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
General Manager’s Transmittal Letter

February 28, 2023

Dear Customers and Interested Parties,

At the SFPUC, protecting the environment and being responsible stewards of the resources entrusted to
our care is vital to everything that we do. These resources include maintaining and upgrading the water,
power, and wastewater systems that our customers depend on. It means supporting our communities
through Customer Assistance Programs and the opening of the new Southeast Community Center in
San Francisco’s Bayview-Hunters Point neighborhood. It also means adapting our water, power, and
wastewater systems to withstand climate change. We continue to innovate to invest in our future.

Public Power

Our power portfolio is a combination of greenhouse-gas-free hydropower that we generate through
our Hetch Hetchy Power system and sustainable energy that we procure through our CleanPowerSF
community choice aggregation program. We are providing cleaner, less expensive power than our
investor-owned competitor, PG&E, and we are actually lowering rates for many of our customers, while
PG&E has raised theirs.

We are doing that while also growing rooftop solar generation by adding a seventh public school to our
portfolio of solar installation sites. As a public power utility, the SFPUC owns and operates numerous
solar installations in San Francisco that collectively generate 8.5 megawatts of solar energy.

Additionally, we have added to our clean energy storage capacity by entering into new contracts.
CleanPowerSF now has over 200 megawatts of battery storage under active contract and serves over
380,000 San Francisco customer accounts.

Water

Our responsible water management allows us to release water to the Tuolumne River every spring.
In particular, since 2006 we have worked to make special releases to support wildlife and wetland
vegetation in the ecologically important Poopenaut Valley within Yosemite National Park. This supports
numerous riparian bird species and up to 17 species of bats. These special releases have occurred in
six of the last 11 years.

We are also working with the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service and our partners on the Tuolumne River on
pilot habitat restoration projects for approximately 9 acres of salmon spawning habitat and 2 acres of
adjacent floodplain rearing habitat. The preliminary project timeline includes grant seeking in 2023 and
construction in 2024.

Biodiversity is a key factor for a healthy watershed. A healthy watershed produces high-quality drinking
water and is more resilient to drought and wildfire. We are protecting our watershed one seed at a
time with our Sunol Native Plant Nursery, which grows plants free from damaging pathogens for habit
restoration in our watershed.

In western San Francisco, we are nearing completion of our Westside Enhanced Recycled Water
Treatment Facility, which is designed to save up to 2 million gallons per day on average of drinking water
that is currently used for non-drinking purposes, like irrigation.

London N. Breed
Mayor

Newsha K. Ajami
President

Sophie Maxwell
Vice President

Tim Paulson
Commissioner

Anthony Rivera
Commissioner

Kate H. Stacy
Commissioner

Dennis J. Herrera
General Manager
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Wastewater
We have been implementing innovative ways to reduce the burden on our unique combined sewer system that protects
our bay and ocean by continuing to expand green infrastructure for stormwater management across the city.

We now capture and manage 250 million gallons of stormwater per year through green infrastructure like rain gardens,
permeable pavement, rainwater harvesting systems and green roofs. In September 2021, we completed the Sunset
Boulevard Greenway Project, installing 30 new rain gardens along 14 city blocks. The project is collectively expected
to keep around 6 million gallons of stormwater out of our sewer system each year and reduce the total volume of
stormwater entering the sewer system from the project area by 95%. The new rain gardens feature drought tolerant
plants and specially engineered soils to absorb runoff from the surrounding streets.

We are also making investments across our entire wastewater system, including upgrading our treatment plants into
state-of-the-art facilities that will look better, smell better, and work better for all of San Francisco.

People
Two of our most important resources are our customers and our staff. As we continue to build the utility of the future,
investments in people are just as important as investments in infrastructure.

We not only introduced and then extended a moratorium on shutoffs and late fees because of the pandemic, we also
secured $20 million in state and federal funding to provide bill relief to our customers.

Additionally, we are working every day to grow our ability to be the employer of choice in the utility industry. That includes
a resolute focus on racial equity to continue to attract and retain the best talent. We are committed to addressing long-
time systemic barriers for communities of color. The SFPUC has expanded staffing and consultant resources to advance
racial equity work, and we are implementing new strategies for diversity-based recruitment for SFPUC jobs. We are also
investing in developing and retaining our existing staff by broadening employee and supervisor training.

Our racial equity work extends beyond our workforce. As this fiscal year drew to a close, we were putting the finishing
touches on a historic investment in our southeast neighborhoods, which are home to communities of color that, over the
years, have felt a disproportionate effect from our operations.

The new Southeast Community Center opened in early fiscal year 2022-23, a landmark destination for the local community
to gather, learn, play, and grow. This partnership with San Francisco’s southeast communities is designed to promote
residents’ health; wellbeing; and cultural, educational, and financial empowerment.

We would like to express appreciation to the Mayor, Board of Supervisors, and our Commission for their continued
support of our approach and achievements.

On behalf of the SFPUC, | am pleased to present the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2022.

Respectfully submitted,

VALY v

Dennis J. Herrera
General Manager
San Francisco Public Utilities Commission
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The Reporting Entity - Profile of the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission

The San Francisco Public Utilities Commission (SFPUC), an enterprise department of the City and County of San
Francisco (the City), is responsible for the operation, maintenance, and development of three utility enterprises: Water,
Wastewater, and Hetch Hetchy Water and Power and CleanPowerSF. We provide wholesale and retail drinking water to the
San Francisco Bay Area, wastewater collection and treatment within San Francisco and three neighboring municipalities,
and power to residential and commercial customers and municipal facilities.

Our Business Services, External Affairs, and Infrastructure bureaus provide support and administrative services and are
funded through utility rates and charges.

The Water Enterprise operates the Hetch Hetchy Regional Water System mm

(System), a wholesale and retail drinking water supply system that serves 2.7 Water Water
million customers in Alameda, Santa Clara, San Mateo, and San Francisco

counties. The upcountry portion of the System begins with Hetch Hetchy Wastewater Wastewater
Reservoir in Yosemite National Park. Impounded by O’'Shaughnessy Dam, Hetchy Water

Hetch Hetchy Reservoir water passes through hydroelectric powerhouses
before it enters the San Joaquin Pipelines, the Tesla Ultraviolet Treatment
Facility, and the Coast Range Tunnel on its journey to the Bay Area. CleanPowerSF

Hetch Hetchy Hetchy Power

The Bay Area portion of the System includes water collection, treatment, and transmission facilities from the Alameda
East Portal to the wholesale service area and terminal reservoirs in San Francisco. Water storage facilities include
watersheds, dams, and reservoirs such as our Calaveras, San Antonio, Crystal Springs, Pilarcitos, and San Andreas. The
water treatment facilities are Tesla Ultraviolet Treatment Facility, disinfecting the Hetch Hetchy supply; Sunol Valley Water
Treatment Plant, treating the water from the Calaveras and San Antonio supply as well as the stored Hetch Hetchy supply;
and Harry Tracy Water Treatment Plant, treating the water from the Crystal Springs and San Andreas supply. The water
transmission system in the Bay Area and Peninsula includes the Bay Division, San Andreas, Sunset Supply, and Crystal
Springs pipelines. The Bay Area transmission system also includes Irvington Tunnel 1 and Tunnel 2, the Bay Tunnel, and
the Crystal Springs Bypass Tunnel.

The Water Enterprise also manages water distribution in the City and the majority of the drinking water is supplied by our
system, originates as snowmelt within the 459-square-mile Hetch Hetchy Watershed on the upper Tuolumne River within
Yosemite National Park. This high-quality water is transported 167 miles across California solely by gravity. The Hetch Hetchy
water supply is augmented with precipitation collected in the reservoirs of the Alameda Creek Watershed in Alameda County,
and the Peninsula Watershed in San Mateo County. The Regional Groundwater Storage and Recovery Project, currently under
construction, will provide additional dry year water supply to the System for drought management.

Water Enterprise revenue is based on retail and wholesale water rate payments from customers. Retail rates are
set by the SFPUC, while wholesale rates are set by the Commission pursuant to our Water Supply Agreement with
our wholesale customers.

The Wastewater Enterprise is responsible for the operation and maintenance of San Francisco’s combined sewer
system that collects, treats, and discharges once treated, sanitary sewage (toilet flushing, bathroom and kitchen sinks,
showers) and stormwater runoff (rainwater falling on our roofs, sidewalks and streets within San Francisco, parts of
Daly City, the Bayshore Sanitary District, Brisbane, Treasure Island, and Yerba Buena Island. This work is crucial for the
protection of public health, and for the environmental safety of the San Francisco Bay and Pacific Ocean. Our combined
sewer system is unique to coastal California and offers significant environmental benefits because it captures and treats
both stormwater (rain runoff) and sanitary sewage from homes and businesses, and these combined flows are referred
to as wastewater.

San Francisco wastewater and stormwater flows are treated at three facilities: the Southeast Treatment Plant, the
Oceanside Treatment Plant, and the North Point Wet Weather Facility, the last of which is operated only in wet weather.
The sewer system currently can handle up to an average of 70 million gallons per day (MGD) in dry weather and can
treat up to 575 MGD in wet weather. The Wastewater Enterprise operates 27 pump stations, 36 discharge points, and
massive underground transport/storage structures around the City that have storage capacity up to 200 million gallons.
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We operate, clean, inspect, and maintain more than 1,000 miles of sewer pipes. We regularly monitor areas of the San
Francisco shoreline for water quality where water recreation is common and provide water quality reports to the public
using our 24-hour hotline, website, and e-newsletters.

The Wastewater Enterprise serves both residential and commercial accounts as well as some municipal customers. Our
sewer facilities and resource recovery programs have received recognition from agencies at the state and national level,
including the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency, National Association of Clean Water Agencies, and the California
Water Environment Association.

In a combined sewer system, such as San Francisco’s, managing stormwater is an important priority for the SFPUC
and the City. We take a comprehensive approach to managing stormwater and advancing flood resilience across the
City. Although no sewer system can handle the heaviest rains, we are pursuing a variety of approaches to improve the
City’s flood resilience in the face of increasingly intense rainstorms. The comprehensive RainReadySF Program, which
is a combination of planned infrastructure improvements, coordinated City services and innovative programs, provides
residents and businesses with the resources they need to reduce the risk of flooding during a major rainstorm.

The Hetch Hetchy Water and Power and CleanPowerSF Enterprise (Hetch Hetchy) comprises of three key components:
(1) Hetch Hetchy Water (Hetchy Water), which operates and maintains the upcountry water and power facilities; (2)
Hetch Hetchy Power (Hetchy Power), responsible for all power utility wholesale and retail transactions and in-City power
operations; and (3) CleanPowerSF, a Community Choice Aggregation (CCA) that provides San Francisco residents and
businesses with electricity supply services sourced from new and existing clean energy sources.

Hetchy Water is responsible for operating the Hetch Hetchy Reservoir, the main source of water for the Hetch Hetchy
Regional Water System (System) and plays a key role in water delivery in California. Several of the Hetch Hetchy Water
facilities are joint assets and are used for both water transmission and power generation and transmission. Operating and
capital costs of these facilities are allocated 45% to Hetchy Water and 55% to Hetchy Power. Refer to Water Enterprise
for more information on the System.

Hetchy Power is the publicly owned utility for San Francisco. The Hetchy Power System is comprised of transmission lines
and some local distribution facilities. It has a generation portfolio that includes three major hydroelectric powerhouses
- Holm, Kirkwood, and Moccasin - in the Sierra Nevada mountain range and 23 solar arrays in San Francisco. Hetchy
Power revenue is based on retail and wholesale power-rate payments and charges collected from customers. Retail rates
are set by the Commission.

Hetchy Power customers include San Francisco International Airport (SFO), libraries, police stations, City Hall, San
Francisco Municipal Transportation Agency (SFMTA), San Francisco Port Authority, Treasure Island, Hunter’'s Point
Shipyard, and the Transbay Transit Center. Hetchy Power also owns, operates, and maintains approximately 60% of the
streetlights in the City. Finally, Hetchy Power provides electrical maintenance services, energy efficiency programs, and
distributed generation services to our customers.

CleanPowerSF, San Francisco’s CCA program, provides clean electricity supply to residents and businesses in San
Francisco. Under this program, CleanPowerSF supplies customers with electricity from renewable sources like solar wind,
and hydro power. Pacific Gas & Electric Company (PG&E) delivers the energy via their electrical grid. CleanPowerSF’s
Green product features at least 50% California Renewable Portfolio Standard (RPS) certified renewable energy, and its
SuperGreen product offers 100% California RPS-certified renewable energy.

CleanPowerSF serves approximately 380,000 customer accounts in San Francisco. Collectively, Hetch Hetchy Power and
CleanPowerSF meet more than 70% of the electricity demand in San Francisco with clean power.
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Mission, Vision, and Values

The mission of the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission (SFPUC or the Commission) is to provide our customers with
high-quality, efficient, and reliable water, power, and wastewater services in a manner that is inclusive of environmental
and community interests, and sustains the resources entrusted to the SFPUC’s care.

SFPUC values sustainability as a fundamental business principle, exemplified through the adoption of an agency-wide
strategic sustainability plan to ingrain the values of a sustainable future into our agency’s core processes. The SFPUC is
a sustainable utility leader, recognized for superior levels in service, value, environmental stewardship and innovation.
Most importantly we value our workforce and community as reflected in the core values adopted by our organization.

* Communication: Listen and communicate honestly and openly.

* Diversity: Valuing a workforce that reflects all manner of views, experiences, backgrounds, and
talents, and recognize it is vital to the SFPUC success.

* Equal Opportunity: Provide opportunities to all staff to contribute and reach their potential. To achieve this, the
SFPUC must be a learning organization.

* Excellence: Strive for personal and professional excellence, and recognize exemplary performance by seeking
continuous improvement.

* Inclusiveness: Provide access and transparency to stakeholders and community members.

* Respect: Understand and appreciate the inherent value of the SFPUC’s staff, customers, and community.
» Safety: Take the health and safety of the SFPUC’s employees, customers, and communities seriously.

* Service: Focus on customer satisfaction, health, and safety.

» Stewardship: Responsibly manage the resources entrusted to the SFPUC'’s care.

* Teamwork: Support a cooperative work environment; the SFPUC team is strengthened by the diversity and
contributions of its members.

* Trust: Act with honesty, integrity, and fairness.
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Fiscal Year 2022
San Francisco Mayor and Public Utilities Commission Members

London N. Breed
Mayor

Anson Moran Newsha K. Ajami
President Vice President

Tim Paulson Sophie Maxwell Ed Harrington
Commissioner Commissioner Commissioner
(July 2021 to January 2022)



Organizational Chart as of June 2022
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Note: AGM is Assistant General Manager, the person who leads an Enterprise or Bureau.

7 Introductory Section | San Francisco Public Utilities Commission Annual Comprehensive Financial Report FY 2022



The Agency Strategic Plan is a high-level and future-oriented plan. The purpose is to better aligh the work of the Water,
Wastewater and Hetch Hetchy Enterprises, set a strategic direction and identify key priorities.

The Agency Strategic Plan outlines the mission, vision and values and sets forth 6 priority goals and supporting objectives.

The goals are as follows:

OUR VALUES Communication ¢ Reliable service and assets;

We listen and

communicate honestly ° Organizational exce”ence;
and openly.

e Effective workforce;

Supporting Values  Financial sustainability;

Teamwork
We support a cooperative T':USt . . .
work environment that is Service Loty * Stakeholder and community interest; and
strengthened by diversity. We fot.:us on c.ustume‘r integrity, and fairness.
satisfaction and innovation.

e Environmental stewardship.

Inclusiveness
We provide access and

transparency to stakeholders

and community members.

Excellence
We strive for personal excellence,
i y per
and seek continuous improvement.

Each Goal has one or more Executive Champions who
have worked across the Enterprises, Infrastructure,
and the Bureaus to develop performance measures
including target and baseline metrics. There is a Lead
Strategist for each of the six goal area who will carry
Diversity the vision of their respective goal area will report
We undergand and biannually to the Goal Champions on progress of
appreciate the inherent experiences, backgrounds and o LEEts @RS achieving the performance measures consistent with
value of our staff, talents, and recognize it is vital to all staff to contribute
S ——] o our success. and reach their potential. the target/baseline. At the end of the fiscal year, each
community. Goal Champion is required to report performance
measured against the target/baseline. More details
of the 2020 SFPUC Strategic plan are available
at https://sfpuc.org/about-us/policies-plans/agency-strategic-plan and the Performance Measures in the Operating

Information section of this report.

Safety
We take the health and safety
of our employees, customers
and communities seriously.

Stewardship
We responsibly manage the
resources entrusted to our

care in a sustainable manner.

Enterprise Risk Management Framework

The SFPUC helps ensure successful implementation of our *
Mission, Vision, and Values by integrating the principles of
Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) into organizational culture
and strategic decision making. In planning for our future, the ERM
framework promotes a culture where risks are identified, assessed,
prioritized, and managed to minimize threats hindering us from Risk assessment
achieving our goals; and to maximize opportunities benefiting the ‘

SFPUC. Accountability and transparency are promoted through

assignment of identified risks to owners, and routine reporting of Risk identification
mitigation status to senior management. The ERM framework is
a continuous process that strengthens organizational structure
and culture through communication and awareness. The Risk
Management division provides support to the SFPUC’s journey
from a traditional risk management approach towards enterprise
risk management - emphasizing effective management of the
total cost of risk and management of risk for better outcomes.

\ 4
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In fiscal years 2015 and 2016 respectively, the Power Enterprise
adopted and implemented the ISO 31000 standard for Enterprise
Risk Management for the Hetchy Power and CleanPowerSF
program. The program enables systematic and proactive
identification and analysis of risks that threaten business )
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objectives before they occur. Proper identification of risks to business objectives ensures mitigation measures can be
implemented to reduce the probability of certain risks occurring or reducing negative impact. Other prior applications
of ERM at the SFPUC include supporting the Strategic Plan, the Business Services Bureau, Emergency Planning and
Security, and other specific PUC programs.

The SFPUC also utilizes other risk tools as part of a comprehensive risk management approach. This includes the SFPUC
Purchased Insurance Program, a portfolio of insurance policies acquired to mitigate various liability risks to mission
critical assets, operational and financial. Other risk management activities include contractual risk review, project specific
risk assessments and advisement for the Infrastructure Project Management Bureau and Contract Management Bureau
for construction, professional and general service contracts. SFPUC Risk Management also collaborates with the Office
of the Administrator’s City Risk Management for citywide risk management initiatives.

Risk Categories

Strategic
Trends in Economy &
Society

Financial

Effect of Market Forces
on Financial Assets or
Liabilities

Operational
People, Processes &
Systems or Controls

Legal/ Regulatory

Effect of Change in Laws

and Regulations

Stakeholders' interests

Public support/ Ratepayer fatigue
Competing expectations

Economic uncertainty

Long-term planning vs. budget limitations
Negative media coverage

Image and reputation

Bond rating

Debt obligations
Financial reporting
Cash flow/availability
Energy costs

Rate fatigue

HR and personnel risks

Operations disruption (e.g. construction,
utilities failure, procurement)

IT data / infrastructure compromise
Process / execution failure
Environmental

Aging infrastructure

Regulatory non-compliance with EPA,
WECC/NERC, GASB, OSHA,
government policy

Compliance with the WSA and WRR
Punitive damages, law suits

Insurable Hazards
Loss Exposures:
Property, Liability or
Personnel

Our property insurance policy
covers select Mission Critical
Power Assets for all risks (e.g. fire,
flood up to $1M, terrorism, etc.)
excluding specific catastrophic
perils (e.g. earthquake, tsunami,
war, etc.).

We have not purchased Business
Interruption insurance as the
property insurance ‘extra expense’
clause serves a similar purpose.

Construction
Worker injury/iliness
Third-party liability

Physical structure damage
Public Officials' liability
Employment liability

Overall, the SFPUC’s ERM initiatives are designed to reduce the chances of a negative outcome from occurring, lessen its
impact, or transfer financial liabilities away from the organization. These initiatives can also increase opportunities and
maximize the benefit from taking advantage of positive outcomes. A combination of these strategies will help lower the
total cost of risk for the SFPUC and achieve both short and long-term benefits to our ratepayers.
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San Francisco’s Budget Process

The budget cycle for the biennial July 1 fiscal year budget begins in August and typically ends in July. The two-year
fixed budget is prepared, reviewed, enacted by the Board of Supervisors, signed by the Mayor, and implemented by
departments and adjusted as necessary during this period. The Board of Supervisors does not adopt a new budget for
the second fiscal year of the cycle unless there are significant increases or decreases in revenues or expenditures which
then reopen the budget to follow the usual budget process.

The SFPUC’s two-year budget is comprised of two, single-year spending plans, which supports the ongoing mission of
the SFPUC to provide its customers with high-quality, efficient, and reliable water, wastewater, and power services in a
manner that is inclusive of environmental and community interests, and that sustains the resources entrusted to our
care. The budget is a detailed operating plan that identifies estimated costs and results in relation to estimated revenues
and represents a process through which policy decisions are deliberated, implemented, and controlled. The budget
aligns funding to accomplish our long-term strategic goals and objectives, ensures funding for our operating programs,
and purposefully supports the Strategic Plan targeted outcomes to ensure the appropriate application of resources to
reach our goals.

Budgeting Basis

The City adopts budgets for all government funds on a budget basis relying on a current financial resources measurement
focus and a modified accrual basis of accounting. The modified accrual method is a basis of accounting used with a
current financial resources measurement focus. It modifies the accrual basis of accounting in two significant ways: first,
revenues are only recoghized when they are measurable and available; second, expenditures are recognized in the period
in which the SFPUC normally liquidates the related liability rather than when the liability is first incurred, if earlier. The City
Charter prohibits expending funds for which there is no legal appropriation.

Accounting Basis

The accounts of the SFPUC Enterprises are organized by proprietary fund type, specifically an enterprise fund. The activities
of the Enterprises are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise the Enterprises’ assets,
deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, net position, revenues, and expenses. Enterprise
funds account for activities that (1) are financed with debt secured solely by a pledge of the net revenues from fees and
charges of the activity; or (2) are required by laws or regulations that the activity’s costs of providing services, including
capital costs (such as depreciation or debt service), be recovered with fees and charges, rather than with taxes or similar
revenues; or (3) that the pricing policies of the activity establish fees and charges designed to recover its costs, including
capital costs.

The financial activities of each Enterprise and the year-end audited financial statements are accounted for on a flow of
economic resources measurement focus, using the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, all assets, deferred
outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources associated with its operations are included on the
Statement of Net Position; revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses recorded when liabilities are incurred. The
SFPUC Enterprises apply all applicable Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements.

Fiscal Year 2023 Operating Budgets

The SFPUC annual budgets, including debt service and cash-funded capital, as well as operation programs total
$1.65 billion and $1.48 billion for fiscal years 2023 and 2022, respectively. The operating programs include regular
operating costs, maintenance of utility facilities and lands, as well as support services, like management, business
services, planning, regulatory compliance, communication, and planned debt service for each of the Enterprise. The
budget includes a forecast of volumetric utility assumptions which incorporate the significant negative impact due to the
COVID-19 pandemic and assumptions around drought impacts on revenues. The operating budget is financed by both
wholesale and retail rates, service charges and non-operating revenues, including rental income and interest earnings.
Of the SFPUC fiscal year 2023 $1.65 billion operating budget, the Water Enterprise accounts for $663.7 million to fund
the operations and maintenance of the SFPUC water system; Wastewater Enterprise’s operating budget of $406.1 million
funds the operations and maintenance of the SFPUC’s sewer system. Hetch Hetchy Water and Power’s operating budget
of $266.0 million funds the operations and maintenance of the upcountry water and power systems, including Power
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Enterprise activities within the City. CleanPowerSF’s operating budget of $315.7 million funds the operations and power
purchases. Detailed budget information is available on our website https://sfpuc.org/about-us/reports/operating-and-
capital-budgets.

Fiscal Year 2023 Capital Budgets

Our capital programs are intended to reconstruct, replace, expand, repair, or improve facilities that are under the SFPUC’s
jurisdiction. The capital budgets are coordinated with the Ten-Year Capital Plan and the Ten-Year Financial Plan. The
issuance of revenue bonds, other forms of indebtedness, and the execution of governmental loans are provided under the
San Francisco City Charter to finance our capital programs. The repayment of this indebtedness is provided through rates
and service charge revenues of the SFPUC that incurs the debt and benefits from the underlying capital improvements.
The budget appropriations for capital programs are coordinated with the SFPUC’s Ten-Year Capital Financial Plans.
The SFPUC develops stand-alone supplemental appropriations for our capital program which are coordinated with our
operating budget review and approval cycle.

Total approved fiscal year 2023 capital budgets were $983.2 million, including $111.2 million for the Water Enterprise,
$687.2 million for the Wastewater Enterprise, $181.1 million for Hetch Hetchy Water and Power Enterprise and $3.7
million for CleanPowerSF.

The major capital investment for the Water Enterprise includes the Water Treatment Program, which is to provide major
improvements to the Sunol and Millbrae Yards such as the Sunol Valley Water Treatment Plant Ozone project. The
Water Transmission Program is to provide upgrades to the transmission system including inspections and repairs, valve
replacements and pump station and vault upgrades. The Regional Water Supply and Storage Program includes upgrades
to structures to meet State Division of Safety of Dams requirements, and projects to increase regional water supply
diversification and explore alternative methods for expanding water sources. The Water Conveyance/Distribution System
Program includes funding to install, replace and renew distribution system pipelines and service connection for over
1,000 miles of drinking water mains in San Francisco.

The Wastewater Enterprise’s major capital investment from the Sewer System Improvement Program (SSIP) includes
the Treatment Facilities Programs, including improvements to the combined sewer transport storage and near shore
combined sewer discharge structures and liquid treatments at various treatment sites. Another major SSIP project is
the Stormwater Management/Flood Control Program, includes work on drainage basins, flood resilience and green
infrastructure storm management program. The Collection System from the Renewal and Replacement Program (R&R)
includes cleaning and inspection of large diameter sewers, transport/storage boxes and collection system discharge/
overflow structures, planned and emergency repairs and replacement of structurally inadequate sewers.

The Hetch Hetchy Water and Power’s major capital investment includes the Distribution Services projects, Water
infrastructure program and Joint projects. The Distribution Services projects include the San Francisco Airport (SFO)
Substation Improvementsto plan, design, and construct needed upgrades at the substations, the Alice Griffith/Candlestick
Point for the second phase of development to install the conductors in the conduits, transformers, switches, and metering
equipment required for the electric distribution system. Water Infrastructure program include concept, development,
design, and upgrades for operating, managing, and maintaining the Hetchy Water Infrastructure. Joint Projects between
Hetchy Water and Hetchy Power includes upgrade communication system within the Moccasin compound, upgrade the
dams and reservoirs to meet the Water Levels of Service and Power Operational Objectives, inspection, and repair to the
mountain tunnel to assure reliability of water delivery.

The CleanPowerSF major capital investment includes the development of new renewable energy (solar photovoltaic) and
battery storage projects on select SFPUC sites as well as development and implementation of new customer programs
project for programs supporting demand response, electric mobility, local renewable energy generation, and building
decarbonization technologjes.

Ten-Year Financial Plan

The SFPUC prepares an annual updated Ten-Year Financial Plan as required by the City and County of San Francisco
Charter Section 8B.123. The Ten-Year Financial Plan is a summary of projected revenues, expenditures, fund balances,
and financial ratios for each enterprise over a rolling 10-year period. The Plan projections are based on current Mayor
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and Commission policies, goals, and objectives. For the ten year plan fiscal year 2023, these projections also include
assumptions based on the pandemic economic recovery and the 2021 drought declaration. A key objective is to promote
SFPUC’s Strategic Plan goal of Financial Sustainability by estimating future revenue requirements and financial ratios
while providing a view of resulting rates changes. Consolidating these key financial indicators into the Plan serves to
inform the SFPUC’s long-term planning decisions, such as the biennial operating and capital budgets, long-range capital
planning and capital financing strategies.

Ten-Year Capital Plan

The SFPUC prepares an annual updated Ten-Year Capital Plan as required by the City and County of San Francisco Charter
Section 3.20. The Plan is to contain a list of projects to be executed during the 10-year planning horizon, including cost
estimates and schedules. Both Ten-Year Financial and Capital Plan, serve as a basis and supporting documentation for
the Commission’s capital budget and issuance of revenue bonds and other indebtedness to support the SFPUC
capital program.

The SFPUC Ten-Year Capital Plan for fiscal years 2023 through 2032 totals $9.9 billion. Water Enterprise is approximately
$2.1 billion, including projects for the Local Water Conveyance, Local Buildings and Grounds Improvements and Regional
Water Supply and Storage. Wastewater Enterprise is approximately $6.1 billion which mainly includes the Treatment
Facilities, Stormwater Management/Flood Control, and the Renewal and Replacement (R&R) program projects like Sewer
Improvements. Hetchy Water and Hetchy Power’s is approximately $1.6 billion is to fund up-county water/power projects
and power distribution services projects like SFO, Alice Griffith, Candlestick Park and Hunters Point. CleanPowerSF is
approximately $74 million to fund the development of new renewable energy (solar photovoltaic) and battery storage
projects.

Financial Transparency, Reporting and Auditing Process

This report was prepared by SFPUC Financial Services in conformance with the principles and standards for financial
reporting set forth by the GASB and U.S. Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). Recommended guidelines by
the Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada were also followed.

The SFPUC’s management is responsible for both the accuracy of the data presented and the completeness and fairness
of its presentation, including all disclosures. The existing comprehensive structure on internal controls in the City and
SFPUC ensures that the financial statements are free of any material misstatements. This report is accurate in all material
respects, and it is presented in a manner designed to set forth fairly the financial position and the results of operations
of the SFPUC. The included disclosures enable the reader to gain a thorough understanding of the SFPUC'’s financial
activities.

The SFPUC'’s financial statements have been audited by KPMG LLP, an independent registered public accounting firm.
The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the SFPUC for
the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021 are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP and are free of material
misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statements presentation. The independent auditors rendered an
unmodified “clean” opinion on the SFPUC’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 since 2008. The
independent auditors’ report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report. Management’'s
Discussion and Analysis (MDA) is presented after the independent auditors’ report, and provides a narrative introduction,
overview, and analysis to accompany the basic financial statements. This letter of transmittal is designed to complement
MDA and should be read in conjunction with it.

Financial Authority and Policies

The City is a Charter City under the California Constitution, and as a result, the Charter is the guiding document for
financial authority and policies for City departments. The SFPUC is the department responsible for the maintenance,
operation, and development of three utility enterprises: the Water Enterprise, the Wastewater Enterprise, and Hetch
Hetchy Water and Power and CleanPowerSF Enterprise. Each of the SFPUC’s enterprise funds is operated and managed
as a separate financial entity and separate enterprise entity.
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The SFPUC’s financial policies, adopted and updated such as fund balance reserve and debt service coverage requirements
are available on our website https://sfpuc.org/about-us/policies-plans/financial-plans-and-policies. The purpose and
source for each of the designated reserves within its major funds of operating, capital projects, debt service, and trust
are included in these guidelines which enable restricting funds for future infrastructure needs, replacement of aging
facilities, bond reserves, and various operating reserves to mitigate unexpected occurrences. These reserves are critical
to the SFPUC’s financial strength and high bond ratings. Further, the City has a long-standing practice of recognizing
and reserving for known and anticipated liabilities. The City also has established an irrevocable trust for other post-
employment benefits (also known as retiree medical) and continues to make the annual requirement contribution to
ensure this future obligation is funded.

Accounting Systems, Policies, and Internal Controls

In developing and maintaining the accounting systems, consideration is given by the administration as to the adequacy
of internal controls. Internal controls are designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance. The SFPUC’s
management is responsible for establishing and maintaining a system of internal controls designed to safeguard the
enterprises’ assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure that adequate accounting data are compiled to allow
for the preparation of financial statements in accordance with GAAP. For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022, the
independent auditors noted no matters involving internal controls over financial reporting that would be considered a
material weakness for Water, Wastewater and Hetch Hetchy Water and Power and CleanPowerSF.

The SFPUC’s Finance Department is responsible for providing the financial services for the utility enterprises, including
support for financial accounting and reporting, accounts payable, billing and collection of water, wastewater, and power
charges, and other revenues. The SFPUC’s financial statements and records are maintained on an enterprise basis using the
accrual method of accounting to ensure the timely matching of revenues against the costs of providing services. Revenues and
expenses are recorded in the period in which the revenues are earned, and the expenses are incurred.

Achievement Awards

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded the Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the SFPUC for its Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. This was the 13th consecutive year that the SFPUC has achieved this prestigious award.
In order to be awarded the Certificate of Achievement, a government or reporting entity must publish an easily readable
and efficiently organized Annual Comprehensive Financial Report. This report must satisfy both GAAP and applicable
legal requirements. A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe our current Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are
submitting it to GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.
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Independent Auditors’ Report

The Honorable Mayor and Board of Supervisors
City and County of San Francisco:

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities and each major fund of the San Francisco Public
Utilities Commission (SFPUC), as of and for the years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the related notes to the financial

statements, which collectively comprise SFPUC’s basic financial statements for the years then ended as listed in the table of
contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the business-type activities and each major fund of SFPUC, as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, and the
respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the years then ended in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAS) and
the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of
the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit
of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of SFPUC and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence
we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements of SFPUC are intended to present the financial position, the changes in
financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows of only that portion of the business-type activities and each major fund of
the City and County of San Francisco, California that is attributable to the transactions of SFPUC. They do not purport to, and do
not, present fairly the financial position of the City and County of San Francisco, California, as of June 30, 2022 and 2021, the
changes in its financial position, or, where applicable, its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with U.S. generally
accepted accounting principles. Our opinions are not modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered
material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence
regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.



KPMG

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of SFPUC’s internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

U.S. generally accepted accounting principles require that the management'’s discussion and analysis and required
supplementary information as listed in the accompanying table of contents be presented to supplement the basic financial
statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is
required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for
placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain
limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with GAAS, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audits of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures
do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise SFPUC’s
basic financial statements. The schedule of changes in net position — dollar and percentage change vs. prior year and schedule
of changes in revenues, expenses and net position — dollar and percentage change vs. prior year are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of
management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audits of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with GAAS. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all
material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual comprehensive financial report. The other
information comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial statements and our
auditors’ report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not cover the other information, and we do not
express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audits of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and consider
whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial statements, or the other
information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected
material misstatement of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated February 28, 2023 on our
consideration of SFPUC’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of
laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an
opinion on the effectiveness of SFPUC’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering SFPUC’s internal control over financial
reporting and compliance.

KPMe LIP

San Francisco, California
February 28, 2023



THE SAN FRANCISCO PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
June 30, 2022 and 2021

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Thissection presents management’s analysis of the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission’s (SFPUC orthe Commission)
financial condition and activities as of and for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022 and 2021. Management’s Discussion
and Analysis (MDA) is intended to serve as an introduction to SFPUC’s financial statements. This information should be
read in conjunction with the audited financial statements that follow this section. All dollar amounts, unless otherwise
noted, are expressed in thousands of dollars.

The information in this MDA is presented under the following headings:
e Organization and Business

Overview of the Financial Statements

Fund Financial Statements

COVID-19

Financial Analysis

Capital Assets

Debt Administration

Rates and Charges

Request for Information

Organization and Business

The SFPUC is a department of the City that is responsible for the maintenance, operation, and development of three
utility enterprises and five funds. The three utility enterprises include Water, Wastewater, and Hetch Hetchy (Hetchy
Water, Hetchy Power and CleanPowerSF).

Water Enterprise

As the third largest municipal water agency in California, the Water Enterprise collects, transmits, treats, and distributes
high quality drinking water to a total population of approximately 2.7 million people, including retail customers in the
City and wholesale customers located in San Mateo, Santa Clara, and Alameda Counties. The Water Enterprise sold
approximately 181 million gallons of water per day in the year ended June 30, 2022. Approximately three-quarter of the
water delivered by the Water Enterprise is to wholesale customers. Retail customers use the remaining one-quarter and
are primarily San Francisco consumers, including residential, commercial, industrial, and governmental users. Wholesale
customers include cities, water districts, one private utility, and one non-profit university. Service to these customers is
provided pursuant to the 25-year Amended and Restated Water Supply Agreement (WSA), commenced on July 1, 2009,
which established the basis for determining the costs of wholesale service.

Wastewater Enterprise

The primary responsibility of the Wastewater Enterprise is to protect the public health and the surrounding bay and ocean
receiving waters by collecting, transmitting, treating, and discharging storm and sanitary flows generated in the service
area. This includes 1,131 miles of combined, sanitary, and storm collection system pipes including: gravity mains, force
mains, culverts, transport storage boxes, and tunnels. San Francisco is the only coastal city in California with a combined
sewer system that collects both wastewater and stormwater in the same network of pipes and provides treatment to
remove harmful pollutants before discharging into the San Francisco Bay and Pacific Ocean. In addition, the Wastewater
Enterprise serves on a contractual basis to certain municipal customers located outside of the City limits, including the
North San Mateo County Sanitation District No. 3, Bayshore Sanitary District, and the City of Brisbane. The Wastewater
Enterprise recovers costs of service through user fees based on the volume and strength of sanitary flow. As of June
30, 2022, the Wastewater Enterprise serves 148,381 residential accounts, which discharge about 15.7 million units of
sanitary flow per year (measured in hundreds of cubic feet, or ccf) and 26,790 non-residential accounts, which discharge
about 5.3 million ccf per year. These reflected an increase of 0.7 million discharge units and 360 increase in the number
of accounts for non-residential and a decrease of 0.9 million discharge units and 455 increase in the number of accounts
for residential, as compared to prior year.
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THE SAN FRANCISCO PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
June 30, 2022 and 2021

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

Hetchy Water

For efficiency and to streamline the coordination of upcountry water and power operations, Hetchy Water operates upcountry
and joint-asset facilities, managing resources in an environmentally responsible manner to a high standard of safety and
reliability while meeting regulatory requirements. It is responsible for operating the Hetch Hetchy Reservoir, the main source
of water for the Hetch Hetchy system. Hetchy Water operates, maintains, and improves water and power facilities, smaller
dams and reservoirs, water transmission systems, power generation facilities, and power transmission assets, including
transmission lines to the Newark substation. Hetchy Water delivers high-quality water from upcountry downhill to the Bay
Area while optimizing the resulting generation of clean hydropower as water is transported through the system. It maintains
land and properties consistent with public health and neighborhood concerns.

Hetchy Power

The core business of Hetchy Power, as a municipal department, is to provide adequate and reliable supplies of electric
power to meet the electricity needs of City and County of San Francisco’s customers, and to offer, when available, power for
the municipal loads and agricultural pumping demands consistent with prescribed contractual obligations and federal law.

Hetchy Power’s portfolio consists of hydroelectric generation, onsite solar at SFPUC and other City facilities, generation
using bio-methane produced at SFPUC wastewater treatment facilities, and third-party purchases. Consistent with its
commitment to the development of cleaner and greener power, and to address environmental concerns and community
objectives, Hetchy Power continues to evaluate and expand its existing resource base to include additional renewables,
distributed generation, demand management, and energy efficiency programs. As part of its mission and core functions,
Hetchy Power provides reliable energy services at reasonable cost to customers, with attention to environmental effects
and community concerns.

Hetch Hetchy Joint

A portion of Hetch Hetchy’s operating budget, capital program, and assets, provides benefit to both Hetchy Power and Hetchy
Water. This is commonly referred to as joint costs and joint assets. Both operating and capital costs that jointly benefit both
funds are allocated 55% to Hetchy Power and 45% to Hetchy Water, as has historically been done by the SFPUC.

CleanPowerSF

In May 2016, SFPUC launched CleanPowerSF, a Community Choice Aggregation (CCA) program, made possible by the
2002 passage of California Assembly Bill 117, enabling communities to purchase power on behalf of their residents and
businesses and creating competition in power generation since May 2016. CleanPowerSF provides San Francisco with new
clean energy alternatives, with its objectives to reduce greenhouse gas emissions, and to provide the City and County of
San Francisco’s (the City) energy consumers with renewable electricity supplies at competitive rates. The SFPUC intends
CleanPowerSF to be financially independent, with ability to set rates and charges with adequate revenues, and to issue debt
to support its operations and future projects. CleanPowerSF is discretely presented as a fund of the Hetch Hetchy Water and
Power and CleanPowerSF Enterprise starting fiscal year 2017.

The core business is to provide greener electricity generation to residential and commercial consumers in San Francisco.
Through CleanPowerSF, SFPUC seeks to achieve several complementary goals, including affordable and competitive
electricity generation rates, a diverse electricity resource portfolio that is comprised of renewable and other clean sources
of supply, and high-quality customer service. The program serves more than 380,000 customer accounts and provides
San Francisco with an electricity supply from its default “Green” product that is at least 50% California State Renewables
Portfolio Standard (RPS)-eligible. Additionally, CleanPowerSF offers “SuperGreen”, a 100% RPS-eligible electricity supply,
that is available to customers for a small additional cost. On June 1, 2022, CleanPowerSF opened enrollment for its
“SuperGreen Saver” product, which provides eligible low-income ratepayers residing in Disadvantaged Communities with
100% RPS electricity at a 20% bill discount.
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Overview of the Financial Statements

The Department’s financial statements include the following:

Statements of Net Position present information on the Department’s assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred
inflows as of year-end, with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Department is improving or worsening.

While the Statements of Net Position provide information about the nature and amount of resources and obligations at
year-end, the Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position present the results of the Department’s
operations over the course of the fiscal year and information as to how the net position changed during the year. These
statements can be used as an indicator of the extent to which the Department has successfully recovered its costs
through user fees and other charges. All changes in net position are reported during the period in which the underlying
event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows. Thus, revenues and expenses
are reported in these statements from some items that will result in cash flows in future fiscal periods, such as delayed
collection of operating revenues and the expenses of employee earned but unused vacation leave.

The Statements of Cash Flows present changes in cash and cash equivalents resulting from operational, capital financing,
non-capital financing, and investing activities. These statements summarize the annual flow of cash receipts and cash
payments, without consideration of the timing of the event giving rise to the obligation or receipt, and exclude non-cash
accounting measures of depreciation or amortization of assets.

The Notes to Financial Statements provide information that is essential to a full understanding of the financial statements
that is not presented on the face of the financial statements.

Fund Financial Statements

The Department has five funds: Water, Wastewater, Hetchy Water, Hetchy Power, and CleanPowerSF.

COVID-19

On February 25, 2020, the Mayor issued a Proclamation declaring a local emergency to exist in connection with the
imminent spread within the City of the novel coronavirus (“COVID-19”). On March 16, 2020, the City’s Health Officer
issued a stay safe at home order, Health Officer Order No. C19-07 (the “Stay Safe At Home Order”), requiring most people
and City employees to remain in their homes subject to certain exceptions including obtaining essential goods (such as
food and necessary supplies), and requiring the closure of nonessential businesses. In addition, Section 2 of the second
supplement to the emergency proclamation authorized the SFPUC the temporary suspension of (a) discontinuation or
shut-off of water, sewer, and power services for residents and businesses in the City for non-payment of water, sewer,
and power bills, and (b) the imposition of late payment penalties or fees for delinquent water, sewer, and power bills
through July 11, 2020. The suspension was extended on December 8, 2020 through June 30, 2021 again on April
27, 2021 through March 31, 2022 and then again on February 22, 2022 to July 31, 2022 for shut off and to June
30, 2023 for late payment penalties for Water Enterprise, Wastewater Enterprise, and Hetchy Power for residential
accounts. The suspension of the return of delinquent CleanPowerSF customers to PG&E generation service for failure
to pay CleanPowerSF charges was extended to June 30, 2022. This proclamation did not have a material effect on the
operations of the SFPUC.

Financial Analysis
Financial Highlights for Fiscal Year 2022

Department-wide Business Type Activities

e Total assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources
by $2,823,758.
e Total assets exceeded total liabilities by $3,068,524.
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Net position increased by $85,648 or 3.1% during the fiscal year.

e Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, increased by $586,502 or 5.9% to
$10,450,688.
Operating revenues increased by $121,174 or 9.3% to $1,422,446.

e Operating expenses decreased by $20,100 or 1.7% to $1,129,725.

Water

e Total assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources

by $633,418.

Total assets exceeded total liabilities by $727,275.

Net position decreased by $17,946 or 2.8% during the fiscal year.

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, increased by $29,795 or 0.5% to $5,617,594.
Current and other assets increased by $7,239 or 0.9% mainly due to net pension asset.

Operating revenues decreased by $9,319 or 1.6% to $573,117.

Operating expenses decreased by $46,996 or 10.5% to $401,786.

Wastewater

e Total assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by
$1,362,662.
Total assets exceeded total liabilities by $1,447,672.
Net position increased by $60,114 or 4.6% during the year.
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, increased by $439,601 or 12.2% to
$4,046,451.
Operating revenues increased by $41,217 or 12.6% to $368,882.
Operating expenses decreased by $35,002 or 12.0% to $257,171.

Hetchy Water

e Total assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by
$249,180.

e Total assets exceeded total liabilities by $276,423.

e Net position increased by $24,519 or 10.9% during the fiscal year.

e Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, increased by $23,526 or 13.3% to $201,007.

e Operating revenues, excluding interest and investment income, and other non-operating revenues, increased by

$2,222 or 4.7% to $49,312.
e Operating expenses, excluding other non-operating expenses, increased by $1,784 or 3.5% to $52,303.

Hetchy Power

e Total assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by

$494,178.

Total assets exceeded total liabilities by $527,476.

Net position increased by $21,718 or 4.6% during the fiscal year.

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, increased by $93,580 or 19.0% to $585,636.

Operating revenues, excluding interest and investment income, and other non-operating revenues, increased by

$36,859 or 27.0% to $173,242.

e Operating expenses, excluding interest expenses, other non-operating expenses, and amortization of premium,
discount, and issuance costs, increased by $10,707 or 7.4% to $156,347.

CleanPowerSF

e Total assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by
$84,320.
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Total assets exceeded total liabilities by $89,678.

Net position decreased by $2,757 or 3.2% during the fiscal year.

CleanPowerSF had no capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization as of June 30, 2022.
Operating revenues, excluding interest and investment income, and other non-operating revenues, increased by
$50,195 or 24.2% to $257,893.

e Operating expenses, excluding interest expenses increased by $49,407 or 23.2% to $262,118.

Financial Highlights for Fiscal Year 2021
Department-wide Business Type Activities

e Total assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources
by $2,736,3009.
Total assets exceeded total liabilities by $2,451,935.
Net position increased by $34,578 or 1.3% during the fiscal year.
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, increased by $665,142 or 7.2%
to $9,864,186.
Operating revenues decreased by $48,315 or 3.6% to $1,300,448.
Operating expenses increased by $100,532 or 9.6% to $1,149,934.

Water

e Total assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources

by $649,517.

Total assets exceeded total liabilities by $418,167.

Net position increased by $8,502 or 1.3% during the fiscal year.

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, increased by $57,254 or 1.0% to $5,587,799.
Current and other assets increased by $$31,110 or 4.4% mainly due to bond proceeds from the issuance of
2020 Series ABCD bonds.

Operating revenues decreased by $1,739 or 0.3% to $581,612.

e Operating expenses increased by $50,726 or 12.7% to $448,843

Wastewater

e Total assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources
by $1,302,583.

e Total assets exceeded total liabilities by $1,266,577.
Net position increased by $9,647 or 0.7% during the year.

e Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, increased by $544,562 or 17.8%
to $3,606,850.

e Operating revenues decreased by $16,463 or 4.8% to $327,665.

e Operating expenses increased by $29,961 or 11.4% to $292,220.

Hetchy Water

e Total assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources

by $224,665.

Total assets exceeded total liabilities by $216,214.

Net position increased by $13,630 or 6.5% during the fiscal year.

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, increased by $16,699 or 10.4% to $177,481.
Operating revenues, excluding interest and investment income, and other non-operating revenues, increased by
$12,137 or 34.7% to $47,090.

e Operating expenses, excluding other non-operating expenses, increased by $5,644 or 12.6% to $50,517.
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Hetchy Power

e Total assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources

by $472,464.

Total assets exceeded total liabilities by $462,136.

Net position increased by $6,857 or 1.5% during the fiscal year.

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, increased by $46,627 or 10.5% to $492,056.

Operating revenues, excluding interest and investment income, and other non-operating revenues, decreased by

$4,488 or 3.2% to $136,383.

e Operating expenses, excluding interest expenses, other non-operating expenses, and amortization of premium,
discount, and issuance costs, decreased by $2,489 or 1.7% to $145,638.

CleanPowerSF

e Total assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded total liabilities and deferred inflows of resources

by $87,080.

Total assets exceeded total liabilities by $88,841.

Net position decreased by $4,058 or 4.5% during the fiscal year.

CleanPowerSF had no capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, as of June 30, 2021.
Operating revenues, excluding interest and investment income, and other non-operating revenues, decreased by
$37,762 or 15.4% to $207,698.

e Operating expenses, excluding interest expense increased by $16,690 or 8.5% to $212,716.
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Financial Position

Department-wide Business Type Activities
The following table summarizes the department-wide changes in net position. Detailed discussion follows for each
proprietary fund.

Table 1
Business Type Activities
Comparative Condensed Net Position
June 30, 2022, 2021, and 2020

Restated 2022 - 2021 2021 - 2020
2022* 2021*~ 2020* Change Change
Total assets:
Current and other assets $ 1,921,659 1,616,001 1,615,614 305,658 387
Capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and amortization 10,450,688 9,864,186 9,199,044 586,502 665,142
Total assets 12,372,347 11,480,187 10,814,658 892,160 665,529
Deferred outflows of resources:
Unamortized loss on refunding of debt 139,514 155,082 144,378 (15,568) 10,704
Pensions 93,952 113,149 115,744 (19,197) (2,595)
Other post-employment benefits 53,412 61,590 43,100 (8,178) 18,490
Total deferred outflows of resources 286,878 329,821 303,222 (42,943) 26,599
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Bonds 161,596 133,308 119,435 28,288 13,873
Certificates of participation 4,395 4,160 3,955 235 205
Commercial paper 625,473 859,051 633,828 (233,578) 225,223
State revolving fund loans 5,764 4,150 2,458 1,614 1,692
Other liabilities 441,067 386,562 346,217 54,505 40,345
Subtotal current liabilities 1,238,295 1,387,231 1,105,893 (148,936) 281,338
Long-term liabilities:
Bonds 6,825,078 6,497,701 6,247,401 327,377 250,300
Revenue Notes 350,356 — — 350,356 —
Certificates of participation 129,550 134,020 138,310 (4,470) (4,290)
State revolving fund loans 418,656 211,816 159,362 206,840 52,454
Other liabilities 341,888 747,573 682,730 (405,685) 64,843
Subtotal long-term liabilities 8,065,528 7,591,110 7,227,803 474,418 363,307
Total liabilities:
Bonds 6,986,674 6,631,009 6,366,836 355,665 264,173
Revenue Notes 350,356 — — 350,356 —
Certificates of participation 133,945 138,180 142,265 (4,235) (4,085)
Commercial paper 625,473 859,051 633,828 (233,578) 225,223
State revolving fund loans 424,420 215,966 161,820 208,454 54,146
Other liabilities 782,955 1,134,135 1,028,947 (351,180) 105,188
Total liabilities 9,303,823 8,978,341 8,333,696 325,482 644,645
Deferred inflows of resources:
Related to pensions 445,403 10,321 62,629 435,082 (52,308)
Leases 44,583 48,110 — (3,527) 48,110
Other post-employment benefits 41,658 35,126 19,824 6,532 15,302
Total deferred inflows of resources 531,644 93,557 82,453 438,087 11,104
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 2,183,518 2,271,638 2,194,130 (88,120) 77,508
Restricted for debt service 20,202 48,677 17,285 (28,475) 31,392
Restricted for capital projects 114,657 22,319 49,635 92,338 (27,316)
Unrestricted 505,381 395,476 440,681 109,905 (45,205)
Total net position $ 2,823,758 2,738,110 2,701,731 85,648 36,379

“Restated due to the implementation of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases.

*Eliminated interfund payables and receivables of $0, $0, and $1,800 working capital loan between Hetchy Power and CleanPowerSF and $629,
$739, and $847 between Wastewater and Hetchy Power for the 525 Golden Gate Avenue Headquarters construction cost in fiscal years 2022,
2021 and 2020, respectively.
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The following table summarizes Water’s changes in net position.

Table 1A
Proprietary Fund — Water
Comparative Condensed Net Position
June 30, 2022, 2021, and 2020

Restated 2022 - 2021 2021 - 2020
2022 2021~ 2020 Change Change
Total assets:
Current and other assets $ 793,761 786,522 701,206 7,239 85,316
Capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and amortization 5,617,594 5,587,799 5,530,545 29,795 57,254
Total assets 6,411,355 6,374,321 6,231,751 37,034 142,570
Deferred outflows of resources:
Unamortized loss on refunding of debt 139,481 154,991 144,189 (15,510) 10,802
Pensions 52,852 64,797 67,084 (11,945) (2,287)
Other post-employment benefits 32,445 37,762 27,583 (5,317) 10,179
Total deferred outflows of resources 224,778 257,550 238,856 (32,772) 18,694
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Revenue bonds 125,285 108,500 94,080 16,785 14,420
Certificates of participation 3,138 2,970 2,824 168 146
Commercial paper 206,297 105,862 362,354 100,435 (256,492)
State revolving fund loans 3,283 1,667 — 1,616 1,667
Other liabilities 181,489 154,257 134,563 27,232 19,694
Subtotal current liabilities 519,492 373,256 593,821 146,236 (220,565)
Long-term liabilities:
Revenue bonds 4,735,650 4,886,275 4,601,215 (150,625) 285,060
Certificates of participation 92,499 95,692 98,754 (3,193) (3,062)
State revolving fund loans 118,478 105,740 73,271 12,738 32,469
Other liabilities 217,961 445,234 415,865 (227,273) 29,369
Subtotal long-term liabilities 5,164,588 5,532,941 5,189,105 (368,353) 343,836
Total liabilities:
Revenue bonds 4,860,935 4,994,775 4,695,295 (133,840) 299,480
Certificates of participation 95,637 98,662 101,578 (3,025) (2,916)
Commercial paper 206,297 105,862 362,354 100,435 (256,492)
State revolving fund loans 121,761 107,407 73,271 14,354 34,136
Other liabilities 399,450 599,491 550,428 (200,041) 49,063
Total liabilities 5,684,080 5,906,197 5,782,926 (222,117) 123,271
Deferred inflows of resources:
Related to pensions 248,704 4,885 34,894 243,819 (30,009)
Leases 44,583 48,110 — (3,527) 48,110
Other post-employment benefits 25,348 21,315 11,772 4,033 9,543
Total deferred inflows of resources 318,635 74,310 46,666 244,325 27,644
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 537,644 517,302 527,856 20,342 (10,554)
Restricted for debt service 14,671 45,586 15,916 (30,915) 29,670
Restricted for capital projects — 22,319 43,122 (22,319) (20,803)
Unrestricted 81,103 66,157 54,121 14,946 12,036
Total net position $ 633,418 651,364 641,015 (17,946) 10,349

“Restated due to the implementation of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases.
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Water Net Position, Fiscal Year 2022

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Water Enterprise’s assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources by $633,418. Total net position decreased from prior year by $17,946 or 2.8% (see
Table 1A). The decrease in net position was the result of an increase of $22,208 in liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources offset by an increase of $4,262 in assets and deferred outflows of resources.

Current and other assets are primarily comprised of restricted and unrestricted balances of cash, receivables for water
deliveries and services, interfund receivables due from other governmental agencies, and inventory.

During the fiscal year 2022, current and other assets increased by $7,239 or 0.9%. The increases included $100,407 in
net pension asset based on actuarial estimates, $6,276 in prepaid charges advances and other receivables mainly for a
settlement from PG&E related to damages on Casitas Avenue in San Francisco, $6,267 in charges for services attributed
to more billings, net of decrease in allowance for doubtful accounts due to utility arrearage relief payment received from
the State as Federal pass-through from the California Water and Wastewater Arrearages Payment Program (CWWAPP),
$865 in inventory due to more purchases than issuances during the fiscal year, $167 in interest, leases and other
receivables due to higher interest rates, and $159 in restricted interest and other receivables. These increases were
offset by decreases of $60,453 in restricted and unrestricted cash and investments mainly due to debt principal and
interest payments, capital projects spending, payments for salaries and goods and services, $41,993 reimbursement
from the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) State Revolving Funds Loan relating to the SF Recycled Water
project, $2,945 in leases receivable from the implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB)
Statement No. 87, Leases, $1,425 in lease asset from the implementation of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, $70
mainly for custom work projects due from the Department of Public Works, and $16 for a Federal grant of culvert repairs
relating to the Santa Clara Unit Lightning Complex fires.

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, increased by $29,795 or 0.5% mainly due to Water
Main Replacement, Treasure Island Well, Serramonte Well and all other well construction, and capital improvement
activities. The largest portion of the Water Enterprise’s net position of $537,644 or 84.9% represents net investment in
capital assets (see Capital Assets section of the MDA for more information), which increased by $20,342 or 3.9% from
prior year’'s $517,302. The change was explained by an increase of $29,794 in capital assets mainly from increased
buildings, structures, and improvements, offset by a decrease of $9,452 in liabilities related to capital assets mainly
from bond principal repayment.

Deferred outflows of resources decreased by $32,772 due to decreases of $15,510 from amortization for unamortized
loss on refunding, $11,945 relating to pensions based on actuarial reports, and $5,317 from OPEB obligations based on
actuarial estimates.

Total liabilities decreased by $222,117 which was due to decreases of $216,417 in pensions based on actuarial report,
$133,840 in outstanding revenue bonds from principal repayments, $4,656 from OPEB obligations due to actuarial
report, $3,025 in certificates of participation mainly due to principal repayments, $1,381 in lease liability from the
implementation of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, $757 in interest payable mainly due to lower bonds outstanding, and
$654 in general liability based on actuarial report. These decreases were offset by increases of $100,435 in commercial
paper from additional principal issuances, $14,354 in State Revolving Funds Loan payable due to additional loans
related to the SF Westside Recycled Water project, $4,759 in restricted and unrestricted payables due to higher year
end accruals as compared to prior year, $463 in accrued payroll, vacation and sick leave due to actuarial entries, $171
in unearned revenues mainly for deposits on custom work, and $145 in workers’ compensation based on actuarial
estimates. The Water Enterprise owed the wholesale customers $79,150, an increase of $18,286 which was mainly due
to annual revenues from the wholesale customers exceeding their share of expenditures. This amount was recorded as
a liability in accordance with the 2009 Water Supply agreement. See Note 11, Water Supply Agreement, for additional details.
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Deferred inflows of resources increased by $244,325 due to an increase of $243,819 related to pensions and $4,033
from OPEB benefits based on actuarial reports, offset by a decrease of $3,527 from leases due to the implementation
of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases.

Water Net Position, Fiscal Year 2021

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the Water Enterprise’s assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities
and deferred inflows of resources by $649,517. Total net position increased from prior year by $8,502 or 1.3% (see Table
1A). The increase in net position was the result of an increase of $107,058 in assets and deferred outflows, offset by a
net increase of $98,556 in liabilities and deferred inflows of resources.

Current and other assets are primarily comprised of restricted and unrestricted balances of cash, receivables for water
deliveries and services, interfund receivables due from other governmental agencies, and inventory. They also include
receivables, which represent cumulative amounts due from the wholesale customers to match revenues with the Water
Enterprise’s costs of providing service (the Balancing Account), in accordance with the provisions set forth in the WSA
effective July 1, 2009. Balances are applied to future year rates. As of June 30, 2021, the Water Enterprise owed the
wholesale customers $60,864, which was mainly due to higher water demand by the wholesale customers. This amount was
recorded as a liability in accordance with the 2009 agreement. See Note 11, Water Supply Agreement, for additional details.

During the fiscal year 2021, current and other assets increased by $31,110 or 4.4%. The increases included $57,567 in
restricted and unrestricted cash and investments mainly due to the issuance of the 2020 Series ABCD bonds, $2,372
in prepaid charges advances and others mainly for prepaid expenses of multiple software licensing and membership
fees, $209 in restricted interest and other receivables, and $160 in inventory due to more purchases than issuances
during the fiscal year. The increases were offset by decreases of $23,725 from the State Water Resources Control Board
(SWRCB) State Revolving Funds Loan relating to the SF Recycled Water project mainly from reimbursements received for
prior year receivable, $4,470 in charges for services due to more collections than billings and an increase in allowance
for doubtful accounts (allowance for doubtful accounts increased by $2,934 primarily due to the Mayor’s COVID-19
proclamation suspending shutoff of water service and collection of past due accounts), $994 in interest receivable
mainly due to lower interest rates and higher cash distributions than interest earnings, $7 due to cash received from
other governments for grants relating to water efficiency, and $2 mainly due to collections from the Department of Public
Works (DPW) for custom work projects.

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, increased by $57,254 or 1.0% mainly due to San
Andreas Pipeline No. 2 and San Francisco Groundwater Supply construction and capital improvement activities. The
largest portion of the Water Enterprise’s net position of $517,302 or 79.6% represents net investment in capital assets
(see Capital Assets section of the MDA for more information), which decreased by $10,554 or 2.0% from prior year’s
$527,856. The change was explained by an increase of $67,808 in liabilities related to capital assets mainly from the
issuance of 2020 Series ABCD and 2020 Series EFGH bonds, offset by an increase of $57,254 in capital assets in
buildings, structures, and improvements and construction in progress from depreciation.

Deferred outflows of resources increased by $18,694 due to increases of $10,802 for unamortized loss on refunding
(the result of a $27,010 increase from the issuance of 2020 Series EFGH bonds, offset by a $15,156 decrease from
amortization and $1,052 from refunding of the 2010 Series D, 2011 Series D and 2012 Series C bonds), and $10,179
from OPEB obligations based on actuarial reports. These increases were offset by a $2,287 decrease relating to pensions
based on actuarial reports.

Total liabilities increased by $119,022 or 2.1% which is due to increases of $299,480 in outstanding revenue bonds
mainly due to the issuance of 2020 Series ABCD and 2020 Series EFGH bonds, $38,284 in net pension liability based
on actuarial report, $34,136 increase in State Revolving Funds Loan payable due to additional loans relating to the
SF Westside Recycled Water project, $25,956 in general liability based on actuarial report, $3,650 in accrued payroll,
vacation and sick leave mainly due to actuarial estimates, 3% increase of cost of living adjustment (COLA), and more
days in current year-end payroll accrual compared to prior year-end accrual, $2,921 in restricted and unrestricted
payables due to higher accruals as compared to prior year mainly for the Information Technology project and 19th
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Ave. Infrastructure Improvement project, and $792 in unearned revenues mainly due to additional customer credit
balances from overpayments. These increases were offset by decreases of $256,492 in commercial paper primarily
due to refunding from the 2020 Series ABCD bonds, $14,913 in other post-employment benefits obligations from
actuarial estimates, $6,557 in interest payable mainly due to refunding from the 2020 Series EFGH Bonds, $3,993 in
the Wholesale Balancing Account due to higher demand from the wholesale customers (see Note 11 for details), $2,916
in certificates of participation from repayments and amortization of premium, $674 in due to other City departments
from payments made for legal services provided by the City Attorney and projects performed by the Department of Public
Works for Sidewalk Inspection and Repair projects, $346 in workers’ compensation based on actuarial estimates, and
$306 in pollution remediation liability as a result of additional expenditures incurred for the Lake Merced Pacific Rod and
Gun Club and 17th and Folsom sites (see Note 16(d) for details).

Deferred inflows of resources decreased by $20,466 from a $30,009 decrease related to pensions based on actuarial
reports, offset by a $9,543 increase from OPEB obligations based on actuarial reports.

28 Financial Section | San Francisco Public Utilities Commission Annual Comprehensive Financial Report FY 2022



THE SAN FRANCISCO PUBLIC UTILITIES COMMISSION
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
June 30, 2022 and 2021

(Dollars in thousands, unless otherwise stated)

The following table summarizes Wastewater’s changes in net position.

Table 1B
Proprietary Fund — Wastewater
Comparative Condensed Net Position
June 30, 2022, 2021, and 2020

Restated 2022 - 2021 2021 - 2020
2022 2021~ 2020 Change Change
Total assets:
Current and other assets $ 628,368 360,711 473,620 267,657 (112,909)
Capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and amortization 4,046,451 3,606,850 3,062,288 439,601 544,562
Total assets 4,674,819 3,967,561 3,535,908 707,258 431,653
Deferred outflows of resources:
Unamortized loss on refunding of debt 33 91 189 (58) (98)
Pensions 25,369 30,219 30,422 (4,850) (203)
Other post-employment benefits 12,898 15,109 10,065 (2,211) 5,044
Total deferred outflows of resources 38,300 45,419 40,676 (7,119) 4,743
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Revenue bonds 34,345 22,880 23,240 11,465 (360)
Certificates of participation 830 785 747 45 38
Commercial paper 379,157 638,518 207,939 (259,361) 430,579
State revolving fund loans 2,481 2,483 2,458 (2) 25
Other liabilities 165,139 149,357 148,585 15,782 772
Subtotal current liabilities 581,952 814,023 382,969 (232,071) 431,054
Long-term liabilities:
Revenue bonds 1,896,908 1,567,042 1,598,493 329,866 (31,451)
Revenue notes 350,356 — — 350,356 —
Certificates of participation 24,458 25,302 26,112 (844) (810)
State revolving fund loans 300,178 106,076 86,091 194,102 19,985
Other liabilities 73,295 188,576 168,906 (115,281) 19,670
Subtotal long-term liabilities 2,645,195 1,886,996 1,879,602 758,199 7,394
Total liabilities:
Revenue bonds 1,931,253 1,589,922 1,621,733 341,331 (31,811)
Revenue notes 350,356 — — 350,356 —
Certificates of participation 25,288 26,087 26,859 (799) (772)
Commercial paper 379,157 638,518 207,939 (259,361) 430,579
State revolving fund loans 302,659 108,559 88,549 194,100 20,010
Other liabilities 238,434 337,933 317,491 (99,499) 20,442
Total liabilities 3,227,147 2,701,019 2,262,571 526,128 438,448
Deferred inflows of resources:
Related to pensions 114,670 2,148 16,892 112,522 (14,744)
Other post-employment benefits 8,640 7,265 4,185 1,375 3,080
Total deferred inflows of resources 123,310 9,413 21,077 113,897 (11,664)
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 1,092,705 1,253,789 1,183,288 (161,084) 70,501
Restricted for debt service 5,391 2,992 1,227 2,399 1,765
Restricted for capital projects 114,657 — — 114,657 —
Unrestricted 149,909 45,767 108,421 104,142 (62,654)
Total net position $ 1,362,662 1,302,548 1,292,936 60,114 9,612

“Restated due to the implementation of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases
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Wastewater Net Position, Fiscal Year 2022

For the year ended June 30, 2022, the Wastewater Enterprise’s assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $1,362,662. The Wastewater Enterprise’s total net position increased by
$60,114 or 4.6% as a result of increases of $114,657 in restricted for capital projects, $104,142 in unrestricted net
position, and $2,399 in restricted for debt service offset by a decrease of $161,084 in net investment in capital assets
(see Table 1B).

During the fiscal year 2022, current and other assets increased by $267,657 or 74.2%. The increase was mainly due to
$182,040 in receivables from the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB) attributed to $202,795 aggregate new
State Revolving Fund (SRF) reimbursement requests consisting of $132,000 for the Southeast Water Pollution Control
Plant (SEP) Biosolids Digester Project, $64,678 for the SEP New Headworks (Grit) Replacement Project, and $6,117 for
the Oceanside Plant (OSP) Digester Gas Utilization Upgrade Project, offset by $20,755 cash receipts from prior year
receivables relating to the OSP Digester Gas Utilization Upgrade Project, an increase of $48,770 in net pension asset
based on actuarial report and $32,650 increase in restricted and unrestricted cash and investments mainly from the
issuance proceeds of tax-exempt 2021 Series AB (Green) revenue notes and 2021 Series AB revenue bonds. Other
increases included $7,241 in receivables for charges for services mainly due to increased billings of $6,143, $1,098
decrease in allowance for doubtful accounts due to utility arrearage relief payment received from the State as Federal
pass-through from the California Water and Wastewater Arrearages Payment Program (CWWAPP), $1,014 due from the
Treasure Island Development Authority (TIDA) for capacity fees, $301 in inventory as there were more purchases than
issuances during the year, $190 in capacity charges net of allowance for doubtful accounts, $118 in interest receivable,
and $25 in State grant receivable for the Baker Beach reimbursement. These increases in current and other assets were
offset by a decrease of $2,325 in lease assets, net of accumulated amortization, due to amortization, $1,763 in Federal
interest subsidy receivable (attributed to $5,817 subsidy received offset by $4,054 subsidy accrual during the year),
$324 decrease in rent receivable mainly due to $304 collection of prior year balance from the San Francisco Community
College, $219 decrease in prepaid charges mainly due to $652 prior year prepaid expenses recognized in current year
and $39 lease prepayments amortizations for the Civic Center Garage and the Mariposa Pump Station & Force, offset
by $472 prepaid expenses in the current year, $56 decrease in interfund receivables and due from component unit
consisting of $118 from the Department of Public Works (DPW) for the Mission Bay South and Hunters View Development
Projects, $24 from the San Francisco Port Commission (Port), and $20 from component unit for the TIDA Replacement
& Repair Project, offset by an increase of $106 in receivable from the Academy of Sciences and Office of Community
Investment Infrastructure, and $5 decrease in custom work receivable.

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, increased by $439,601 or 12.2% reflecting an
increase in construction and capital improvement activities. The largest portion of the Wastewater Enterprise’s net
position of $1,092,705 or 80.2%, represents net investment in capital assets (see Capital Assets section of the MDA
for more information). Deferred outflows of resources decreased by $7,419 mainly due to decreases in pensions and
other post-employment benefits by $4,850 and $2,211, respectively based on actuarial report and $58 amortization
of the 2013 Series A bonds loss on refunding.

Total liabilities increased by $526,128 or 19.5%. As of June 30, 2022, total debt outstanding balance of $2,988,713
for revenue bonds and notes payable, certificates of participation (COP), commercial paper, and State Revolving Fund
(SRF) loans, represented 92.6% of total liabilities, an increase of $625,627 or 26.5%. The increase was mainly due to
$373,700 issuance of 2021 Series AB revenue bonds, consisting of $297,880 par amounts and $75,820 premiums,
$350,823 issuance of 2021 Series AB revenue notes consisting of $347,465 par amounts and $3,358 premiums,
$200,702 new SRF loans to finance the SEP Biosolids Digester Facilities, the SEP New Headworks Replacement, and the
OSP Digester Gas Utilization Upgrade projects, and $80,639 issuance of commercial paper. These increases were offset
by $340,000 retirement of commercial paper, $26,148 in debt principal repayments, $9,970 in premium amortization
during the year, and $4,000 loan principal forgiveness for the SRF OSP Digester Gas Utilization Upgrade Project along
with $119 unreimbursed loan claim. Other liabilities of $238,434 such as payables to vendors, contractors, and other
government agencies for goods and services under contractual agreements and employees, decreased by $99,499
or 29.4%, mainly due to decreases of $103,746 in net pension liability based on actuarial report, $4,668 in general
liability based on actuarial estimates, $2,314 in lease liability due to implementation of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases,
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$1,588 in other post-employment benefits obligations based on actuarial report, and $110 in payable to Hetch Hetchy
Power related to the 525 Golden Gate Living Machine System. These decreases were offset by increases of $7,229 in
restricted and unrestricted payable due to increased vouchers, $4,184 in bond and loan interest payable due to higher
outstanding debt principal, $792 in unearned revenues mainly due to $892 in customer credit balances mainly due to
overpayments offset by decreases of $81 in deposits from Pacific Gas & Electric due to expenses incurred for the Cross
Bore Project and $19 in liens payable, $462 in employee related benefits including vacation, workers’ compensation,
accrued payroll mainly due to actuarial estimates, and 3.5% increase of cost of living adjustment (COLA), and $260 in
pollution remediation obligation.

Deferred inflows of resources increased by $113,897 due to increases in pensions and other post-employment benefits
by $112,522 and $1,375, respectively based on actuarial report.

Wastewater Net Position, Fiscal Year 2021

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the Wastewater Enterprise’s assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded
liabilities and deferred inflows of resources by $1,302,583. The Wastewater Enterprise’s total net position increased by
$9,647 or 0.7% as a result of increases of $70,501 in net investment in capital assets and $1,765 in restricted for debt
service offset by a decrease of $62,619 in unrestricted net position (see Table 1B).

During the fiscal year 2021, current and other assets decreased by $118,831 or 25.1%. The decrease was mainly
due to a decrease of $136,773 in restricted and unrestricted cash and investments largely attributed to increased
spending for the Sewer System Improvement Program (SSIP) and debt principal and interest repayment. Other decreases
included $666 in receivables for charges for services mainly due to $2,172 increase in allowance for doubtful accounts
as there were more sewer charge receivables aging over 120 days attributable to the suspension of collection efforts
in response to the COVID-19 emergency proclamation issued by the City Mayor. These decreases in current and other
assets were offset by an increase of $17,490 in receivables from the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB)
due to $20,755 in reimbursement receivable for disbursements claim relating to the Oceanside Plant (OSP) Digester Gas
Utilization Upgrade Project offset by cash receipts of $3,265 in State Revolving Fund (SRF) reimbursement requests
consisting of $2,0441 for the Southeast Plant (SEP) 521/522 and Disinfection Upgrade and $1,224 for the Lake Merced
Green Infrastructure projects. The other increases included $680 in prepaid charges, advances, and other receivable
consisting of $546 prepayments to the San Francisco Estuary Institute, Bay Area Air Quality Management District, and
Water Research Foundation, $290 in rent receivable mainly due a receivable from the San Francisco Community College,
and $17 in custom work receivable offset by $173 prepaid expenses recognized to expense for the current year, $181
in inventory as there were more purchases than issuances during the year, $166 in restricted and unrestricted interest
and other receivable mainly due to an increase in Federal interest subsidy receivable, and $91 increase in interfund
receivables consisting of $47 from the Department of Public Works (DPW) for the Mission Bay South and Hunters View
Development Projects, $24 from the San Francisco Port Commission (Port), and $20 from the Treasure Island Development
Authority (TIDA).

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, increased by $544,562 or 17.8% reflecting an
increase in construction and capital improvement activities. The largest portion of the Wastewater Enterprise’s net
position of $1,253,789 or 96.3%, represents net investment in capital assets (see Capital Assets section of the MDA
for more information). Deferred outflows of resources increased by $4,743 mainly due to $5,044 increase in other post-
employment benefits based on actuarial report offset by $203 decrease in pensions based on actuarial report and $98
amortization of the 2013 Series A bonds loss on refunding.

Total liabilities increased by $4 32,491 or 19.1%. As of June 30, 2021, total outstanding balance of $2,363,086 for revenue
bonds payable, commercial paper, certificates of participation, and SRF loans represented 87.7% of total liabilities, an
increase of $418,006 or 21.5%. The increase was mainly due to $435,450 additional commercial paper issuance and
$22,468 SRF loan to fund the OSP Digester Gas Utilization Upgrade, the SEP 521/522 and Disinfection Upgrade, and the
Lake Merced Green Infrastructure projects offset by $31,316 in debt repayments and $8,596 in amortization of premium
during the year. Other liabilities of $331,976 such as payables to vendors, contractors, and other government agencies
for goods and services under contractual agreements and employees, increased by $14,485 or 4.6%, due to increases
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of $17,511 in net pension liability based on actuarial report, $3,912 in employee related benefits including vacation,
workers’ compensation, and accrued payroll mainly due to actuarial estimates, 3% increase of cost of living adjustment
(COLA), and more days in current year-end payroll accrual compared to prior year-end accrual, $822 in general liability
based on actuarial estimates, $130 in customer credit balances mainly due to overpayments, and $26 in liens payable.
These increases were offset by decreases of $7,472 in other post-employment benefits obligations based on actuarial
report, $145 in bond and loan interest payable due to lower outstanding debt principal and lower interest rates, $135
in restricted and unrestricted payable due to higher voucher payments than vouchers generated, and $109 in payable
to Hetch Hetchy Power due to payment for the 525 Golden Gate Living Machine System, $54 decrease in deposit from
PG&E due to expenses incurred for the Cross Bore Project, and $1 interfund payable to City Attorney’s Office. Deferred
inflows of resources decreased by $11,664 due to $14,744 decrease in pensions based on actuarial report offset by
$3,080 increase in other post-employment benefits based on actuarial report.

The following table summarizes Hetchy Water’s changes in net position.

Table 1C-A
Proprietary Fund — Hetchy Water
Comparative Condensed Net Position
June 30, 2022, 2021, and 2020

Restated 2022 - 2021 2021 - 2020
2022 2021~ 2020 Change Change
Total assets:
Current and other assets $ 109,752 98,225 92,711 11,527 5,514
Capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and amortization 201,007 177,481 160,782 23,526 16,699
Total assets 310,759 275,706 253,493 35,053 22,213
Deferred outflows of resources:
Pensions 6,696 7,799 7,950 (1,103) (151)
Other post-employment benefits 3,272 3,725 2,332 (453) 1,393
Total deferred outflows of resources 9,968 11,524 10,282 (1,556) 1,242
Liabilities:
Current liabilities 17,380 15,873 6,769 1,507 9,104
Long-term liabilities 16,956 43,623 40,441 (26,667) 3,182
Total liabilities 34,336 59,496 47,210 (25,160) 12,286
Deferred inflows of resources:
Related to pensions 34,477 988 4,335 33,489 (3,347)
Other post-employment benefits 2,734 2,085 1,195 649 890
Total deferred inflows of resources 37,211 3,073 5,530 34,138 (2,457)
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 201,007 177,481 160,782 23,526 16,699
Restricted for capital projects — — 6,513 — (6,513)
Unrestricted 48,173 47,180 43,740 993 3,440
Total net position $ 249,180 224,661 211,035 24,519 13,626

“Restated due to the implementation of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases.

Hetchy Water Net Position, Fiscal Year 2022

Hetchy Water’'s net position of $249,180 increased by $24,519 or 10.9% resulting from a net increase of $33,497
in total assets and deferred outflows of resources, offset by a net increase of $8,978 in total liabilities and deferred
inflows of resources (see Table 1C-A). The increase of $11,527 in current and other assets was attributed to increases
of $13,912 in net pension assets based on actuarial report, $33 in charges for services receivables due to higher
consumption from Lawrence Livermore National Laboratory, $19 in interest receivables due to higher interest accrual
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from City’s Treasury, and $8 in inventory due to more purchases than issuances during the fiscal year. The increases were
offset by decreases of $2,173 in cash and investment with City Treasury mainly from higher project spending, $192 in
prepaid charges, advances, and other receivables mainly due to prepayment to Turlock Irrigation District for relicensing
studies, $67 decrease in due from other governments related to State grant reimbursement received for Lower Cherry
Aqueduct project, and $13 decrease in lease right-to-use assets net of accumulated amortization per implementation
of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases.

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, increased by $23,526 or 13.3% to $201,007 primarily
from construction and capital improvement activities for the Mountain Tunnel Improvement Project and San Joaquin
Pipeline Valve and Safe Entry Improvement Project. Deferred outflows of resources decreased by $1,556 due to decreases
of $1,103 in pensions and $453 in other post-employment benefits (OPEB) based on actuarial reports.

Hetchy Water's total liabilities decreased by $25,160 or 42.3% to $34,336, as explained by decreases of $26,645 in net
pension liability based on actuarial estimates, $2,733 in restricted payables to vendors and contractors mainly due to
lower year-end expense accruals for capital projects, $204 in OPEB obligations based on actuarial assumptions, $16 in
lease liability per implementation of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, and $6 in grant advance due to recognition of prior
year State grant for the Rim Fire project. These decreases were offset by increases of $4,192 in unrestricted payables
mainly for license and permit fees to National Park Service, $148 in employee related benefits mainly due to increase in
workers’ compensation, $102 in general liability based on actuarial estimates, and $2 increase in rental deposits and
prepaid rent.

Deferred inflows of resources increased by $34,138 due to increases of $33,489 in relation to pensions and $649 in
OPEB based on actuarial reports.

Hetchy Water Net Position, Fiscal Year 2021

Hetchy Water's net position of $224,665 increased by $13,630 or 6.5% resulting from an increase of $23,381 in total
assets and deferred outflows of resources, offset by a net increase of $9,751 in total liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources (see Table 1C-A). The increase of $5,440 in current and other assets was attributed to increases of $7,423 in
cash and investment with City Treasury mainly due to a $16,000 transfer from the Water Enterprise to fund upcountry
projects, offset by higher project spending, $413 increase in charges for services receivables due to higher consumption
from Lawrence Livermore National Laboratory, and $4 increase in inventory due to more purchases than issuances during
the fiscal year. The increases were offset by decreases of $1,996 in due from other governments mainly due to prior year
reimbursements received for disaster emergency recoveries related to the 2018 Moccasin Storm and $186 in interest
receivables due to lower annualized interest rate. Prepaid charges, advances, and other receivables decreased by $114
due to $448 Rim Fire insurance recovery collections and $4 in amortization of the advance paid to the Recreation and
Parks Department for the Civic Center Garage, offset by an increase of $338 in vendor prepayment to Turlock Irrigation
District for Federal Energy Regulatory Commission (FERC) relicensing studies and California Department of Water
Resources for annual dam fees. Other decreases include $104 due from the City Attorney’s Office for legal services.

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, increased by $16,699 or 10.4% to $177,481 primarily
from construction and capital improvement activities for the Mountain Tunnel Improvement Project and Repair &
Replacement Life Extension Program, and additions of facilities, improvements, machinery, and equipment. Deferred
outflows of resources increased by $1,242 due to an increase of $1,393 in OPEB based on actuarial reports offset by a
decrease of $151 in pensions.

Hetchy Water's total liabilities increased by $12,208 or 25.9% to $59,418, as explained by increases of $5,778 in
restricted payables to vendors and contractors mainly due to higher year-end expense accruals for capital projects,
$5,168 in net pension liability based on actuarial report, $3,304 in unrestricted payables mainly for license and permit
fees to National Park Service, $626 in employee related benefits including workers’ compensation, vacation, sick leave
and accrued payroll mainly due to an extra day in current year-end payroll accrual when compared to prior year and a 3%
cost of living adjustment increase in December 2020, and $4 increase in rental deposits. The increases were offset by
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decreases of $1,906 in OPEB obligations based on actuarial assumptions, $493 in grant advance due to recognition of
Rim Fire grant revenue, $240 in payable due to the City Attorney’s Office for unbilled legal services, and $33 in general
liability based on actuarial estimates.

Deferred inflows of resources decreased by $2,457 due to a decrease of $3,347 in relation to pensions offset by an
increase of $890 in OPEB based on actuarial reports.

The following table summarizes Hetchy Power’s changes in net position.

Table 1C-B
Proprietary Fund — Hetchy Power
Comparative Condensed Net Position
June 30, 2022, 2021, and 2020

Restated 2022 - 2021 2021 - 2020
2022 20214 2020 Change Change
Total assets:
Current and other assets $ 260,560 249,365 228,845 * 11,195 20,520
Capital assets, net of accumulated
depreciation and amortization 585,636 492,056 445,429 93,580 46,627
Total assets 846,196 741,421 674,274 104,775 67,147
Deferred outflows of resources:
Pensions 8,183 9,531 9,716 (1,348) (185)
Other post-employment benefits 3,999 4,552 2,850 (553) 1,702
Total deferred outflows of resources 12,182 14,083 12,566 (1,901) 1,517
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Bonds 1,966 1,928 2,115 38 (187)
Certificates of participation 427 405 384 22 21
Commercial paper 40,019 114,671 63,535 (74,652) 51,136
Other liabilities 48,549 49,450 33,218 (901) 16,232
Subtotal current liabilities 90,961 166,454 99,252 (75,493) 67,202
Long-term liabilities:
Bonds 192,520 44,384 47,693 148,136 (3,309)
Certificates of participation 12,593 13,026 13,444 (433) (418)
Other liabilities 22,646 55,425 54,085 (32,779) 1,340
Subtotal long-term liabilities 227,759 112,835 115,222 114,924 (2,387)
Total liabilities:
Bonds 194,486 46,312 49,808 148,174 (3,496)
Certificates of participation 13,020 13,431 13,828 (411) (397)
Commercial paper 40,019 114,671 63,535 (74,652) 51,136
Other liabilities 71,195 104,875 87,303 (33,680) 17,572
Total liabilities 318,720 279,289 214,474 39,431 64,815
Deferred inflows of resources:
Related to pensions 42,138 1,207 5,298 40,931 (4,091)
Other post-employment benefits 3,342 2,548 1,461 794 1,087
Total deferred inflows of resources 45,480 3,755 6,759 41,725 (3,004)
Net position:
Net investment in capital assets 352,162 323,066 322,204 29,096 862
Restricted for debt service 140 99 142 41 (43)
Unrestricted 141,876 149,295 143,261 (7,419) 6,034
Total net position $ 494178 472,460 465,607 21,718 6,853

“Restated due to the implementation of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases.
* Included $1,800 working capital loan to CleanPowerSF in fiscal year 2020.
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Hetchy Power Net Position, Fiscal Year 2022

Hetchy Power’s net position of $494,178 increased by $21,718 or 4.6% resulting from a net increase of $102,874 in
total assets and deferred outflows of resources, offset by an increase of $81,156 in total liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources (see Table 1C-B). Increase of $11,195 in current and other assets was attributed to increases of $17,004
in net pension assets based on actuarial report, $7,882 in prepaid charges, advances, and other receivables mainly due
to collateral paid to satisfy the CAISO’s financial security requirements, $3,295 in cash and investments mainly due to
higher collections from billings, $76 in interest receivables due to higher interest accrual from City’s Treasury, and $31
increase in Federal grants receivable mainly from the Rim Fire Project.

These increases were offset by decreases of $8,835 in charges for services receivables due to completion of billing
system implementation in prior year resulting in more timely billings in current year, $7,497 in restricted interest and
other receivables mainly due to decrease in vendor prepayment to PG&E for the Bay Corridor Project, $602 in due from
other City departments mainly from repayment for Sustainable Energy Account, $142 in inventory due to more issuances
than purchases during the fiscal year, and $17 decrease in lease right-to-use assets net of accumulated amortization per
implementation of GASB Statement No. 87, Leases.

Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization, increased by $93,580 or 19.0% to $585,636 primarily
from construction and capital improvement activities for the Bay Corridor Project and Mountain Tunnel Improvement
Project. Deferred outflows of resources decreased by $1,901 due to decreases of $1,348 in pensions and $553 in OPEB
based on actuarial reports.

Hetchy Power’s total liabilities of $318,720 increased by $39,431 or 14.1%. As of June 30, 2022, outstanding debt
increased by $73,111 due to $124,000 from 2021 Series AB revenue bond issuances, $63,058 from commercial paper
issuance for Hetchy Power facilities, and $27,022 in bond premium from 2021 Series AB revenue bonds, offset by
$140,043 in commercial paper, bonds, and certificates of participation principal repayments, and $926 in amortization
of premium and discount. Other liabilities of $71,195, such as payables to vendors, employees, contractors, and other
government agencies for goods and services under contractual agreements, decreased by $33,680 or 32.1%, mainly due
to decreases of $32,566 in net pension liability based on actuarial estimates, $6,241 in unrestricted payables mainly
from prior year wheeling charges to APX, Inc., $248 in OPEB obligations based on actuarial assumptions, $85 in general
liability based on actuarial estimates, and $19 decrease in lease liability and interest payable per implementation of
GASB Statement No. 87, Leases. These decreases were offset by increases of $3,666 in restricted payables to vendors
and contractors due to higher year-end expense accruals for capital projects, $868 increase in interest payable related
to 2021 Series AB revenue bond issuances, $734 in unearned revenues, refunds, and other, $200 in employee related
benefits mainly due to increase in workers’ compensation, and $11 in due to Department of Public Works for painting
of light poles. Increase of $734 in unearned revenues, refunds, and other was mainly due to increases of $458 in
deposits from custom work projects, $267 in prepayments from Distributed Antenna System (DAS) program, and $60 in
overpayments received from customers, offset by decreases of $48 in grant advance due to recognition of Rim Fire State
grant revenue and $3 in deposits received from retail customers.

Deferred inflows of resources increased by $41,725 due to increases of $40,931 in relation to pensions and $794 in
OPEB based on actuarial reports.

Hetchy Power Net Position, Fiscal Year 2021

Hetchy Power’s net position of $472,464 increased by $6,857 or 1.5% resulting from an increase of $68,574 in total
assets and deferred outflows of resources, offset by a net increase of $61,717 in total liabilities and deferred inflows of
resources (see Table 1C-B). Increase of $20,430 in current and other assets was attributed to an increase of $16,057
in charges for services receivables, of which $15,673 was attributed to billing delays as a result of transitioning to new
billing system implemented in April 2024.. In addition, there was an increase of $1,051 in year-end accrual for California
Independent System Operator (CAISO) Congestion Revenue Right (CRR) credits, offset by an increase of $667 in allowance
for doubtful accounts due to increased past due balances as a result of the Mayor’s emergency proclamation that Hetchy
Power temporarily suspend collection procedures and utility shutoffs for p